

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT-RISK

RFQ # 2020-PUR-008

November 11, 2020

NOTICE

The School District of the City of Independence. District 30 ("District") will accept qualifications for a construction manager at-risk in accordance with RSMo § 67.5050 and as described in the attached request. Qualified organizations ("Respondent") are invited to submit five (5) copies of a formal proposal as described in the attached RFP.

PROPOSAL SHALL BE LABELED

"QUALIFICATIONS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT-RISK"

AND ADDRESSED TO:

Facilities Att: Salum Stutzer 201 N. Forest Avenue Independence, MO 64050

PROPOSALS MUST BE RECEIVED BY:

2:00 PM on Tuesday, November 24th, 2020

Questions/Requests for Information may be directed to:
Salum Stutzer
(816)521-5330
salum stutzer@isdschools.org

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Certification Form

Part I: Introduction and Process

- 1) Purpose
- 2) Information About the District
- 3) Scope of Services
- 4) Timeline for Process
- 5) Selection Criteria
- 6) Review Process

Part II: Instructions to Respondents

- 1) Qualifications
- 2) Submitting a Response
- 3) Proposal Requirements
- 4) Contract Negotiations
- 5) Felony Conviction Notification
- 6) Federal Work Authorization Program (E-Verify) Addendum
- 7) Federal Work Authorization Program Affidavit
- 8) Written Certification of Compliance with Anti-Discrimination Against Israel Act

Part III: General Conditions-Responses and Subsequent Contracts

- 1) Scope
- 2) Definitions
- 3) Completing Proposal
- 4) Request for Information
- 5) Confidentiality of Qualification Information
- 6) Proposal of Qualification
- 7) Negotiation
- 8) Termination
- 9) Tax Exemption
- 10) Safety
- 11) Rights Reserved
- 12) Respondent Prohibited
- 13) Disclaimer of Liability
- 14) Hold Harmless
- 15) Law Governing
- 16) Anti-Discrimination Clause
- 17) Conflict of Interest
- 18) Insurance
- 19) Costs

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT-RISK

RFQ No. 2020-PUR-008

CERTIFICATION FORM

The School District of the City of Independence. District No. 30 ("District") will accept qualifications for construction manager at-risk in accordance with RSMo § 67.5050 and as described in the attached request. Qualified organizations (Respondent) are invited to submit five (5) copies of a formal proposal as described herein.

PROPOSAL SHALL BE LABELED "QUALIFICATIONS – CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK" AND ADDRESSED

TO:

Facilities
Independence School District #30
Att: Salum Stutzer
201 N. Forest Avenue
Independence, MO 64050

PROPOSALS MUST BE RECEIVED BY:

2:00 PM on Tuesday, November 24th, 2020

The District reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive technical defects, and to select the proposal deemed most advantageous to the District.

The undersigned certifies that he/she has the authority to bind the company in an agreement to supply the service in accordance with all terms and conditions specified herein. Please type or print the information below. Respondent is required to complete, sign and return this form with the proposal.

Company Name		Authorized	Person (Print)	
Address		Signature		
City/State/Zip		Title		
Telephone #	Fax #	Date	Tax ID #	
E-mail		Entity Type		
			_	

PART I: INTRODUCTION AND PROCESS

1. PURPOSE

The District is requesting qualifications from firms to provide a full range of services as Construction Manager at-Risk (CM-R) during the planning, design, renovation and construction of school facilities. The District will retain a design firm(s) to provide all architecturally related services, and the CM-R will be required to work with the District and design firm(s) during the planning phase, construction document preparation and the construction process.

This Request for Qualifications (RFQ) is the first step in a two-step competitive process by which the District will engage a CM-R firm to provide construction management. Step one will consist of a request for qualifications, review of qualifications and selection of a short list of firms who will proceed to step two. **Respondents are not to include fees, costs or price information in response to the RFQ**.

Step two will consist of a short list of firms asked to submit cost proposals in response to the District's Request for Proposals (RFP). The District will interview at least two firms who provide cost proposals before selecting a CM-R. Interviews will take place on Tuesday, December 1, 2020. Time slots will be assigned by random draw. An outline containing questions for the interview is attached as Appendix B to the RFQ.

Respondents who timely provide their qualifications must understand that if they are selected by the District to provide an RFP, that Respondent's deadline to provide their proposals is five (5) days after the District's notification to Respondent that it has been selected to provide an RFP. A copy of the RFP is attached hereto as Appendix C. Interviews will be conducted on Tuesday, December 1, 2020. Times will be drawn and assigned.

Ownership of all data, materials and documentation originated and prepared for the District pursuant to the RFQ shall belong exclusively to the District and be subject to public inspection in accordance with the Missouri Sunshine Law.

2. INFORMATION ABOUT THE DISTRICT

Organization

E	E	
Schools	(2) Early Childhood Centers	3&4 Year Old
	(20) Elementary Schools	PreK-5
	(4) Middle Schools	6-8
	(3) High Schools	9-12

Grade Level Range

For more information about the District, visit our website www.isdschools.org

3. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The selected firm shall provide construction manager at-risk services related to the following:

Construction management services for projects with an anticipated cost of over \$3 Million.

4. TIMELINE FOR PROCESS

The timeline listed below is the District's estimation of time required to complete the selection process. All efforts shall be made to abide by this schedule; however, it is subject to change if necessary:

Board Meeting – Notification of Intent to Utilize November 10, 2020 Construction Manager At-Risk

1 st Publishing of RFQ	November 13, 2020
2 nd Publishing of RFQ	November 20, 2020
RFIs Due	November 17, 2020
RFQ Due	November 24, 2020 at 2:00 PM
Names of Parties That Submitted RFQs Publicly	November 24, 2020 at 2:15 PM
Opened and Read Aloud	
Notification of Firms Asked to Submit RFP	November 25, 2020
RFP due	November 30, 2020
Parties That Submitted RFPs Publicly Opened	November 30, 2020
and Read Aloud	
Interviews Conducted	December 1, 2020
Apparent Successful Offeror	December 2, 2020
Notification	
Board of Education Approval	December 8, 2020

Communications with Board members and/or other District staff in an effort to influence the outcome of the RFQ selection process is prohibited and will result in rejection of the proposal.

5. <u>SELECTION CRITERIA</u>

Respondent's qualifications will be evaluated on the following criteria:

- Respondent's qualifications and capability to perform the work required.
- Respondent's overall experience as a construction manager at-risk.
- Respondent's experience as a construction manager at risk of educational projects, specifically of similar size, type and complexity as related to the scope.
- Experience and qualifications of the overall project team as it related to the project superintendent, project manager, pre-construction/estimating services and others specifically assigned to project.
- Respondent's demonstrated good faith efforts to achieve compliance with federal, state and local affirmative action requirements.
- Respondent's demonstrated use of successful management systems which have been employed for the purposes of estimating, scheduling, and cost controls.
- School District References
- Other References
- Respondent's safety record.
- The methodology and practices to be used by Respondent in managing and executing the project.
- Proximity to and familiarity with the geographical area in which the project shall be located.
- Respondent's financial strength.
- LEED Project Experience

Proposals will be evaluated to determine which firm best meets the needs of the District. Information given in the proposal, Section II, 1, 2, & 3, will be used to evaluate information needed for selection.

Under no circumstance should your qualifications include any proposals of fees, costs or prices.

6. REVIEW PROCESS

Following the deadline, the selection committee shall evaluate the qualifications. The period of evaluation of the qualifications may be extended. Firms will be evaluated according to their response to the RFQ.

PART II: INSTRUCTIONS TO RESPONDENTS

1. **QUALIFICATIONS**

In addition to the signed Certification Form, the following information shall be included in a proposal:

A. Basic Information: Single page executive summary of firm profile Name of firm(s)
Contact person (phone, e-mail, fax, etc.) Direct mailing address
Overview of firm history

B. Firm Personnel Profile:

Experience and credentials

Manager of services to be assigned to District
Support personnel overview

C. Firm Experience Profile & Contacts (list contacts & phone number)
Listing of Kansas City Metro Area Public School Districts
Listing of other Missouri & Kansas Public School Districts
Description of Local / State / National legislative involvement

- D. Provide a copy of firm's most recent Annual Financial Report
- E. Include a two-paragraph executive summary of rationale describing why your firm should be selected by the District.
- F. Specify and be prepared to show proof of the level and type(s) of insurance carried to cover errors and omissions, improper judgment, or negligence.
- G. Felony Conviction Notification Form
- H. Federal Work Authorization Program (E-Verify) Addendum
- I. Federal Work Authorization Program Affidavit
- J. Written Certification of Compliance with the Anti-Discrimination Against Israel Act
- K. Completion of the one-page Firm Information and Experience Sheet, attached hereto as Appendix A.

2. <u>SUBMITTING A RESPONSE</u>

In submitting qualifications, the Respondent agrees to provide the services in accordance with the project scope. The successful Respondent will provide a Letter of Engagement for District review which enumerates the terms of the agreement.

The response shall follow the outline above and be concise. Failure to follow instructions may nullify the response from consideration. To be considered for selection, Respondents should clearly limit responses to the specific criteria in the order listed. No joint responses will be accepted by the District.

The deadline for submitting the response shall be in accordance with the notice. Proposals received after this date and time will not be considered. Telephone, facsimile, electronic or electronic delivery of proposals will not be considered. The District is not responsible for lateness or non-delivery by the United States Postal Service or other carrier to the District. The time and date recorded by the District shall be the official time of receipt. Proposals are to be prepared at no cost to the District and will remain the District's property.

3. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

The formal proposal shall contain the following information, in the following sequence and format:

- 1) Title Page
- 2) Letter of Introduction
- 3) Table of Contents

4) Firm Profile and Philosophy

All of the information submitted should be related to the Prime Consultant. Do not include information for any sub-consultant in this section. Sub-consultant information is to be included in Section 9.

5) Approach to Planning and Design

In detail, describe your firm's planning process and how you propose to include District administration, professional staff, the Board of Education, and community representatives.

6) Personnel Assigned to the Project

Identify the names of any personnel (prime and sub-consultants) who will be members of the actual project team, and identify their level of experience with K-12 projects.

7) Experience with Similar Projects

Provide information about your firm's experience on K-12 projects, and your overall qualifications to carry out educational projects closely related to District projects. Please provide project descriptions, locations, and color photos of relevant projects that have occurred in the past seven (7) years. All of the projects submitted should be projects completed by the Prime Consultant.

8) Consultant References

Provide a reference list from five (5) recent K-12 projects. Include district name, contact name, and telephone numbers. All of the references submitted should be projects completed by the Prime Consultant. Do not include references for any sub-consultants that may be included on your team.

9) Information on Other Sub-Consultants Your Firm Will Employ for this Project

Please include relevant information including: Firm(s) history and profile, philosophy, specialization, experience, and references.

10) Digital Copies of Proposal

Provide a digital copy of each proposal in all proposal packets.

Detailed plans, proposals, fees and schedule(s) are not requested by the School District as part of this solicitation and are not to be included in your response. Should your firm be selected to interview, fee information must be submitted separately at that time. At that time, please provide in a SEPARATE envelope marked "Fees & Conditions", a contract with all conditions, all fees & general conditions that could be charged separately.

4. CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS

Only after the submission of responses to requests for proposals will the District attempt to negotiate and contract for the services described in this RFQ solicitation with the most qualified firms. If an agreement cannot be reached, there will be an attempt to negotiate a contract with the next most qualified firm(s). This process will continue until an agreement is reached.

FELONY CONVICTION NOTIFICATION

The person or business entity that enters into an agreement with District must advance notice to the District if the person or an owner or operator of the business entity has been convicted of a felony. The notice must include a general description of the conduct resulting in the conviction of a felony.

The District may terminate this agreement with a person or business entity if the District determines that the person or business entity failed to give notice by the next preceding subsection, or misrepresented the conduct resulting in the conviction. The District will compensate the person or business entity for services performed before the termination of the agreement.

By submitting this offer and signing this certificate, this bidder:

- Certifies that the owner/operator has not been convicted of a felony, except as indicated on a separate attachment to this offer, and
- Certifies that no employee who will enter school buildings or potentially have contact with school children has been convicted of any felony or a misdemeanor involving violence or sexual contact or sexual abuse. It shall be the duty of the vendor to conduct the appropriate background checks on its employees and vendor agrees to share this information with the District upon request.

Vendor Name:		
Vendor Address:		
Vendor E-mail Address:		
Vendor Telephone:		
Authorized Company Official's Name:	Printed)	
Signature of Company Official:		
Data		

FEDERAL WORK AUTHORIZATION PROGRAM ("E -VERIFY")

Pursuant to Missouri Revised Statute § 285.530, all business entities awarded any contract in excess of five thousand dollars (\$5,000) with a Missouri public school district must, as a condition to the award of any such contract, be enrolled and participate in a federal work authorization program with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services being provided, or to be provided, to the District (to the extent allowed by E-Verify). In addition, the business entity must affirm the same through sworn affidavit and provision of documentation. In addition, the business entity must sign an affidavit that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the services being provided, or to be provided, to the District.

Accordingly, your company:

- a) Agrees to have an authorized person execute the attached "Federal Work Authorization Program Affidavit" attached hereto as Exhibit A and deliver same to the District prior to or contemporaneously with the execution of its contract with the District;
- b) Affirms it is enrolled in the "E-Verify" (formerly known as "Basic Pilot") work authorization program of the United States, and are participating in E-Verify with respect to your employees working in connection with the services being provided (to the extent verified by E-Verify), or to be provided, by your company to the District;
- c) Affirms that it is not knowingly employing any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the services being provided, or to be provided, by your company to the District;
- d) Affirms you will notify the District if you cease participation in E-Verify, or if there is any action, claim or complaint made against you alleging any violation of Missouri Revised Statute § 285.530, or any regulations issued thereto;
- e) Agrees to provide documentation of your participation in E-Verify to the District prior to or contemporaneously with the execution of its contract with the District (or at any time thereafter upon request by the District), by providing to the District an E-Verify screen print-out (or equivalent documentation) confirming your participation in E-Verify;
- f) Agrees to comply with any state of federal regulations or rules that may be issued subsequent to this addendum that relate to Missouri Revised Statute § 285.530, and
- g) Agrees that any failure by your company to abide by the requirements a) through f) above will be considered a material breach of your contract with the District.

By:	(signature)
Printed Name and Title:	
For and on behalf of:	(company name)

FEDERAL WORK AUTHORIZATION PROGRAM ("E -VERIFY")

	bei	ng of legal age and	d having been dul	y sworn upon my oath and
ate the following facts are	true:			
1. I am more tha	n twenty-one years	of age; and have f	irst-hand knowled	lge of the matters set
forth herein. 2. I am employed	d by		_ (hereinafter "C	ompany") and have
authority to is	ssue this affidavit or	n its behalf.		
3. Company is e	nrolled in and partic	cipating in the Uni	ited States E-Veri	fy (formerly known as
"Basic Pilot") federal work auth	orization program	with respect to C	Company's employees
working in co	onnection with the	services Company	is providing to,	or will provide to, the
District, to th	e extent allowed by	E-Verify.		
4. Company does	not knowingly emp	oloy any person wh	no is an unauthoriz	zed alien in connection
with the servi	ices the Company is	providing to, or v	will provide to, the	e District.
FURTHER AFFIAN				
	By:		(individual signature)
	For:			_(company name)
	Title:			_
Subscribed and swor	n to before me this	_day of	, 2016.	
		NOTARY PU	JBLIC	
My commission expi	ires:			

COMPLIANCE WITH ANTI-DISCRIMINATION AGAINST ISREAL ACT

Pursuant to Missouri Revised Statute § 34.600, the Anti-Discrimination Against Israel Act, all businesses awarded any construction contract with a total potential value in excess of one hundred thousand dollars (\$100,000) with a Missouri public entity must, as a condition to the award of any such contract, provide written certification that the business is not currently engaged in and shall not, for the duration of the contract, engage in a boycott of goods or services from the State of Israel; companies doing business in or with Israel or authorized by, licensed by, or organized under the laws of the State of Israel; or persons or entities doing business in the State of Israel.

Discrimination Against Israel Act:	, 1	
Signature:		_
Printed Name and Title:		_
Company Name:		

By signing below, the business certifies that it is and shall remain wholly compliant with the Anti-

PART III: GENERAL CONDITIONS-RESPONSES & SUBSEQUENT CONTRACTS

The following terms and conditions shall govern the proposal of qualifications and subsequent contracts

1. SCOPE:

See Part I, Paragraph 3 of the RFQ.

2. <u>DEFINITIONS AS USED HEREIN</u>:

- (a) The term "request for qualification" or RFQ means a solicitation of a formal and sealed qualification.
- (b) The term "respondent" or "firm" means the person or entity submitting a formal sealed qualification.
- (c) The term "District" means Independence Public School District.
- (d) The term "School Board" means the governing body of the District.
- (e) The term "Contractor" means the respondent awarded a contract under this RFQ.

3. COMPLETING PROPOSAL:

All information must be legible. Any and all corrections and/or erasures must be initialed. Each proposal must be signed in ink by an authorized representative of the respondent and required information must be provided. The contents of the qualifications submitted by the successful respondent will become part of any contract award as a result of this solicitation.

4. **REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION:**

Any requests for clarification of additional information deemed necessary by any respondent to present a proper proposal shall be made in accordance with the timeline. All requests will be responded to in writing by the District in the form of an addendum addressed to all prospective respondents. Verbal responses and/or representations shall not be binding on the District.

5. CONFIDENTIALITY OF QUALIFICATION INFORMATION:

All proposals and supporting documents will remain confidential until a final contract has been executed. All responses become the property of Independence Public School District and will be part of the public record.

6. PROPOSAL OF QUALIFICATIONS:

Proposals are to be sealed and submitted prior to the date and time indicated on the Certification Form. At such time all proposals received will be formally opened. The opening will consist of only the name and address recording of respondents. Proposals received after the date and time indicated on the Certification Form shall not be considered. Proposals may be withdrawn or modified in writing prior to the proposal deadline. Proposals that are resubmitted or modified must be sealed and submitted prior to the proposal deadline. Each respondent may submit only one (1) response to this RFQ.

7. **NEGOTIATION:**

The District reserves the right to negotiate any and all elements of this RFQ. The District will attempt to negotiate and contract for services described in this solicitation with the most qualified firm(s). If an

agreement cannot be reached, there will be an attempt to negotiate a contract with the next most qualified firm(s). This process will continue until an agreement is reached.

8. TERMINATION:

Subject to the provisions below, any contract derived from this RFQ may be terminated by either party upon thirty (30) days advance written notice to the other party; but if any work or service hereunder is in progress, but not completed as of the date of termination, then said contract may be extended upon written approval of the District until said work or services are completed and accepted.

(a) TERMINATION FOR CONVEINENCE

In the event that the contract is terminated or cancelled upon request and for the convenience of the District, without the required thirty (30) days advance written notice, then the District shall negotiate reasonable termination costs, if applicable.

(b) TERMINATION FOR CAUSE

Termination by the District for cause, default, or negligence on the part of the contractor shall be excluded from the foregoing provision; termination costs, if any, shall not apply. The thirty (30) days advance notice requirement is waived in the event of Termination for Cause.

(c) TERMINATION DUE TO UNAVAILABILTY OF FUNDS

When funds are not appropriated or otherwise made available to support continuation of performance in a subsequent fiscal year, the contract shall be cancelled and the contractor shall be reimbursed for the reasonable value of any nonrecurring costs incurred but not amortized in the price of the supplies or services delivered under the contract.

9. TAX EXEMPTION:

The District and its Agencies are exempt from State and local sales taxes. Sites of all transactions derived from this proposal shall be deemed to have been accomplished with the State of Missouri.

10. SAFETY:

All practices, materials, supplies, and equipment shall comply with the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act, as well as any pertinent Federal, State and/or local safety or environmental codes.

11. RIGHTS RESERVED:

The District reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, to waive any minor informality or irregularity in any proposal, and to make award to the proposal deemed to be most advantageous to the District. The District reserves the right to use the services of multiple firms.

12. RESPONDENT PROHIBITED:

Respondents are prohibited from assigning, transferring, conveying, subletting, or otherwise disposing of this RFQ or any resultant agreement or its rights, title, or interest therein or its power to execute such agreement to any other person, company or corporation without the previous written approval of the District.

13. <u>DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY</u>:

The District, or any of its agencies, will not hold harmless or indemnify any respondent for any liability whatsoever.

14. HOLD HARMLESS:

The Contractor shall agree to protect, defend, indemnify, and hold the School Board, Independence Public School District, its officer, commissions, employees and agents free and harmless from and against any and all losses, penalties, damages, settlements, costs, charges, professional fees or other expenses or liabilities of every kind and character resulting from the error, omission or negligent act of the Contractor, its agents, employees or representatives in the performance of the Contractor's duties under any agreement resulting from award of this RFQ.

15. LAW GOVERNING:

All contractual agreements shall be subject to, governed by, and construed according to the laws of this State of Missouri.

16. ANTI-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:

No respondent of this request shall in any way, directly or indirectly, discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, disability, age, sex, gender, national origin, or any other characteristic protected by law. Further, by submitting a proposal, respondent agrees to exercise good faith efforts to achieve compliance with federal, state and local affirmative action requirements.

17. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:

The successful respondent shall not have conflicts of interest as to revenues derived from the results of tests or recommendations made on behalf of the firm. No salaried officer or employee of this District and no member of the School Board shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect, in the contract. A violation of this provision renders the contract void. The Contractor further covenants that in the performance of the contract no person having such interest shall be employed to work on this project.

18. **INSURANCE**:

The Contractor shall be required to maintain and carry in force, for the duration of the contract, insurance coverage of the types and minimum liability as set forth below:

(a) PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY

Professional liability insurance protection must be carried by the Contractor, for the duration of the contract, in the minimum amount of \$1,000,000 each claim/\$1,000,000 aggregate, including errors and/or omissions.

(b) COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Limits:

Each Occurrence:	\$1,000,000
Personal & Advertising Injury:	\$2,000,000
Products/Completed Operations Aggregate	\$2,000,000
General Aggregate:	\$2,000,000

Policy must include the following conditions:

Contractual Liability
Independent Contractors
Additional Insured: Independence Public School District

(c) AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Policy shall protect the Contractor from claims for bodily injury and/or property damage arising out of the ownership or use of any owned, hired and/or non-owned vehicles. The limits of auto liability shall be the same as required in the Commercial General Liability section. The District shall also be named as an additional insured under the policy.

(d) W ORKERS 'COMP ENSAT ION

This insurance shall protect the Contractor against all claims under applicable State Workers' Compensation Laws. The Contractor shall also be protected against claims for injury, disease or death of employees which, for any reason, may not fall within the provisions of a Workers' Compensation Law. The policy limits shall not be less than the following:

Workers' Compensation: Statutory

Employer's Liability:

Bodily Injury by Accident \$500,000 Each Accident Bodily Injury by Disease \$500,000 Policy Limit \$500,000 Each Employee

Before entering into contract, the successful respondent shall furnish to the District Purchasing Office a Certificate of Insurance verifying all of the foregoing coverage and identifying the District as an "additional insured" on both the general liability and automobile policies. This inclusion shall not make the District a partner or joint venture with the contract respondent in its operations hereunder.

Prior to any material change or cancellation, the District will be given thirty (30) days advance notice by registered mail to the stated address of the certificate holder. Further, the District will be immediately notified of any reduction or possible reduction in aggregate limits of any such policy where such reduction, when added to any previous reductions, would exceed ten percent (10%) of the aggregate.

In the event of an occurrence, it is further agreed that any insurance maintained by the District, shall apply in excess of and not contribute with insurance provided by policies named in this contract.

The certificate holder on the Certificate of Insurance shall be as follows:

Independence School District No. 30 201 N. Forest Avenue Independence, MO 64050

19. <u>COSTS</u>

All costs incurred in the preparation of the proposal to this RFQ shall be the sole responsibility of the respondent.

APPENDIX A

				1	1	
ndependence School District					Inspiring	Greatness
Fee Matrix for CM-R						
August 10, 2016					– (–	
Page 1 of 5						
					INDEPENDENCE	SCHOOL DISTRIC
		INCLUDE IN			DIRECT COST	
DESCRIPTION	INCLUDE IN FEE	GENERAL CONDITIONS	A/E	OWNER	OF WORK (BID PKGS)	
I DDECONCEDUCTIO	N/CONSTRUCT		ACEME	AT OFFI		
I. PRECONSTRUCTIO	N/CONSTRUC	IION WAN	AGEME	NI SERV	ICES	
Design Coordination Meetings Attendance						
2. Initial Cost Opinion/Control Estimate						
3. Participate in MEP-FP Selection						
4. Constructability Analysis Through Completion						
5. Cost Analysis/Control Through Completion						
6. MEP-FP Design Coordination Reviews						
7. CD Document Review						
8. Subcontrat Bidding/Buyout Process						
9. MBE/WBE Participation Program Management						
10. Substance Abuse Policy Management						
11. Project Superintendent						
12. Field Engineer/Project Manager						
13. Corporate Executives/Legal Services						
14. Principal in Charge						
15. Project Executive						
16. Accounting/Purchasing						
17. Scheduling/Phasing/Expiditor/Life Cycle Analysis						
18. Energy Management						
19. Production Engineering						
20. Value engineering						
21. Systems Development						
22.Estimating						
23. Cost Engineers						
24. Project Coordinator						
25. Project Expeditor						
26. Drafting Detailer						
27. Drawing Checker						
28. Safety Officer						
29. E.E.O. Officer						
30. Secretarial						
31. Clerk-typist						
31. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator						
33. Electrical Coordinator						
34. Project Engineer						
35. Scheduling Engineer						
36. Time Keeper/Checker						
37. Safety Engineer						
38. Superintendent's Transportation						
39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost						
40. Off-Site Staff Transportation						
41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation						
42. Engineer's Transportation						
43. Project Staff Moving Expense						
44. Project Staff Subsistance Cost						
44. I Toject Stall Subsistance Cost				<u> </u>		

Independence School District					1	
Fee Matrix for CM-R					Inspiring	Greatness
August 10, 2016 Page 2 of 5						
. 450 2 0. 0						
		INCLUDE IN			DIRECT COST	SCHOOL DISTRIC
	INCLUDE IN FEE	GENERAL CONDITIONS	A/E	OWNER	OF WORK (BID PKGS)	
II. SAF	ETY, SECURITY	, AND SEI	RVICES			
1. Safety Equipment						
2. First Aid Supplies						
3. Handrails and toe Boards						
4. Opening Protection						
5. Fire Extinguishers/Fire Watch						
6. Security Guard/Watchman Service						
7. Routine Cleanup						
8. Final Cleanup						
9. Temporary Fencing						
9. Temporary Fencing 10. Covered Walkways						
11. Barricades						
12. Safety Nets						
12. Safety Nets 13. Ambulance Costs						
13. Ambulance Costs 14. Debris Hauling/Removal						
14. Debris Hauling/Removal 15. Traffic Control						
16. Roadway Maintenance 17. Dust Controls						
18. 2-Way Radio Equipment						
19. Trash Chute and Hoppers 20. Snow and Ice Removal						
20. Show and its removal						
III. FACIL	ITIES, EQUIPME	NT. AND	UTILITIE	S		
	,	,				
1. Office and Trailer Rentals						
2. Waterboy-Ice-Cups						
3. Temporary Wiring/Lighting						
4. Power Expense						
5. Temporary Water Service						
6. Heating Expense						
7. Cooling Expense						
3. Temporary Toilets/Sewer Services						
9. Change/Shower Rooms						
10. Lunch Rooms						
11. Temporary Stairs						
12. Temporary Enclosures/Partitions						
13. Project Signs/Bulletin Boards						
14. Telephone Expenses						
5. Temporary Roads						
16. Trucks						
7. Air Compressors						
8. Dewatering Equipment						
9. Generators						
20. Miscellaneous Equipment						
· ·						
'1. Fuel, Repairs, and Maintenance	ı					
21. Fuel, Repairs, and Maintenance						
NOTE: PERSONNEL COSTS INCLUDE SALARIES & FR	INGE BENEFITS)					

ndependence School District					Inspiring	Greatness	
Fee Matrix for CM-R							
ugust 10, 2016					_(—		
Page 3 of 5							
					INDEPENDENCE	SCHOOL DISTRICT	
		INCLUDE IN			DIRECT COST		
	INCLUDE IN FEE		A/E	OWNER	OF WORK (BID PKGS)		
	_	CONDITIONS			1 1100)		
IV	. VERTICAL HO	DISTING					
I. Hoist (Tower Crane)							
2. Small Material Hoist Rental							
3. Hoist Landings and Fronts							
4. Hoist Operators							
5. Hoist Material Skips							
6. Hoist Material Hoppers							
7. Erect and dismantle Hoists							
3. Fuel, Repairs, Maintenance for Hoists							
9. Hoist Communication							
10. Crane Rental							
11. Crane Operators							
12. Erect and dismantle Crane							
13. Fuel, Repairs, Maintenance for Crane							
14. Crane Raising/Jumping Cost							
15. Temporary Elevator Rental							
16. Elevator Operation Cost							
17. Elevator Repairs and Maintenance							
18. Cage Rider at Elevator							
19. Forklift Rental							
20. Forklift Operators							
21. Fuel, Repairs, Maintenance for Forklifts							
22. Elevator Service Costs							
23. Safety Inspections for Hoisting Equipment							
V. REPF	RODUCTION A	ND PRINT	ING				
Cost Study Documents							
2. Systems Study Documents							
Systems Study Documents Bid Package Documents							
3. Bid Package Documents							
3. Bid Package Documents 4. Bidding Instructions 5. Construction Documents Printing 6. Postage and Express Costs							
3. Bid Package Documents 4. Bidding Instructions 5. Construction Documents Printing 6. Postage and Express Costs 7. As-Built Documentation							
3. Bid Package Documents 4. Bidding Instructions 5. Construction Documents Printing 6. Postage and Express Costs 7. As-Built Documentation 8. As-Built Documents (Printing/Drafting)							
3. Bid Package Documents 4. Bidding Instructions 5. Construction Documents Printing 6. Postage and Express Costs 7. As-Built Documentation 8. As-Built Documents (Printing/Drafting) 9. Accounting Forms							
3. Bid Package Documents 4. Bidding Instructions 5. Construction Documents Printing 6. Postage and Express Costs 7. As-Built Documentation 8. As-Built Documents (Printing/Drafting) 9. Accounting Forms 10. Field Reporting Forms							
3. Bid Package Documents 4. Bidding Instructions 5. Construction Documents Printing 6. Postage and Express Costs 7. As-Built Documentation 8. As-Built Documents (Printing/Drafting) 9. Accounting Forms 10. Field Reporting Forms 11. Contract Agreement Forms							
3. Bid Package Documents 4. Bidding Instructions 5. Construction Documents Printing 6. Postage and Express Costs 7. As-Built Documentation 8. As-Built Documents (Printing/Drafting) 9. Accounting Forms 10. Field Reporting Forms 11. Contract Agreement Forms 12. Schedule Report Forms							
3. Bid Package Documents 4. Bidding Instructions 5. Construction Documents Printing 6. Postage and Express Costs 7. As-Built Documentation 8. As-Built Documents (Printing/Drafting) 9. Accounting Forms 10. Field Reporting Forms 11. Contract Agreement Forms 12. Schedule Report Forms 13. Estimating Forms							
3. Bid Package Documents 4. Bidding Instructions 5. Construction Documents Printing 6. Postage and Express Costs 7. As-Built Documentation 8. As-Built Documents (Printing/Drafting) 9. Accounting Forms 10. Field Reporting Forms 11. Contract Agreement Forms 12. Schedule Report Forms 13. Estimating Forms 14. Cost Reporting Forms							
3. Bid Package Documents 4. Bidding Instructions 5. Construction Documents Printing 6. Postage and Express Costs 7. As-Built Documentation 8. As-Built Documents (Printing/Drafting) 9. Accounting Forms 10. Field Reporting Forms 11. Contract Agreement Forms 12. Schedule Report Forms 13. Estimating Forms 14. Cost Reporting Forms 15. Presentation Charts and Graphics							
3. Bid Package Documents 4. Bidding Instructions 5. Construction Documents Printing 6. Postage and Express Costs 7. As-Built Documentation 8. As-Built Documents (Printing/Drafting) 9. Accounting Forms 10. Field Reporting Forms 11. Contract Agreement Forms 12. Schedule Report Forms 13. Estimating Forms 14. Cost Reporting Forms 15. Presentation Charts and Graphics 16. Value Analysis Studies							
3. Bid Package Documents 4. Bidding Instructions 5. Construction Documents Printing 6. Postage and Express Costs 7. As-Built Documentation 8. As-Built Documents (Printing/Drafting) 9. Accounting Forms 10. Field Reporting Forms 11. Contract Agreement Forms 12. Schedule Report Forms 13. Estimating Forms 14. Cost Reporting Forms 15. Presentation Charts and Graphics 16. Value Analysis Studies 17. Data Processing (In-House)							
B. Bid Package Documents 4. Bidding Instructions 5. Construction Documents Printing 6. Postage and Express Costs 7. As-Built Documentation 8. As-Built Documents (Printing/Drafting) 9. Accounting Forms 10. Field Reporting Forms 11. Contract Agreement Forms 12. Schedule Report Forms 13. Estimating Forms 14. Cost Reporting Forms 15. Presentation Charts and Graphics 16. Value Analysis Studies 17. Data Processing (In-House) 18. Reference Materials							
B. Bid Package Documents J. Bidding Instructions J. Construction Documents Printing J. Postage and Express Costs J. As-Built Documentation J. As-Built Documents (Printing/Drafting) J. Accounting Forms J. Contract Agreement Forms J. Contract Agreement Forms J. Schedule Report Forms J. Schedule Report Forms J. Cost Reporting Forms J. Reference Materials J. Duplication Expense (Miscellaneous)							
B. Bid Package Documents J. Bidding Instructions J. Construction Documents Printing J. Postage and Express Costs J. As-Built Documentation J. As-Built Documents (Printing/Drafting) J. Accounting Forms J. Contract Agreement Forms J. Contract Agreement Forms J. Schedule Report Forms J. Schedule Report Forms J. Cost Reporting Forms J. Cost Reporting Forms J. Cost Reporting Forms J. Data Processing (In-House) J. Reference Materials J. Duplication Expense (Miscellaneous) J. Shop Drawing Printing							
8. Bid Package Documents 9. Bidding Instructions 9. Construction Documents Printing 9. Postage and Express Costs 7. As-Built Documentation 9. As-Built Documents (Printing/Drafting) 9. Accounting Forms 10. Field Reporting Forms 11. Contract Agreement Forms 12. Schedule Report Forms 13. Estimating Forms 14. Cost Reporting Forms 15. Presentation Charts and Graphics 16. Value Analysis Studies 17. Data Processing (In-House) 18. Reference Materials 19. Duplication Expense (Miscellaneous) 19. Shop Drawing Printing 19. Maintenance Manuals							
Bidding Instructions Construction Documents Printing Construction Documents Printing Construction Documents Printing Construction Documents Printing Constage and Express Costs Construction Constage and Express Costs Construction Contract Documents (Printing/Drafting) Contract Reporting Forms Contract Agreement Forms Con							
Bidding Instructions Construction Documents Printing As-Built Documentation As-Built Documents (Printing/Drafting) Accounting Forms Contract Agreement Forms Contract Agreement Forms Estimating Forms Cost Reporting Forms Cost Reporting Forms Cost Reporting Forms Cost Reporting Forms Reference Materials Duplication Expense (Miscellaneous) Cost Maintenance Manuals							

Fee Matrix for CM-R					Inspirin	g Greatness
August 10, 2016 Page 4 of 5					Duebennene	SCHOOL DISTRICT
	INCLUDE IN FEE	INCLUDE IN GENERAL CONDITIONS	A/E	OWNER	DIRECT COST OF WORK (BID PKGS)	Sende Bistrice
	VI. QUALITY C	ONTROL	S			
. Chief inspector 2. Field Inspector						
3. Inspector's Office						
I. Inspector's Transportation						
5. Inspector's Equipment						
5. Special Inspection Consultants						
7. Special Testing Consultants						
B. Concrete Testing						
D. Masonry Testing						
Compaction Testing						
1. Welding Testing						
2. Soils Investigations						
2. Special Testing Services						
4. Supplies and Materials (Field Office)					1	
5. Project Photographs						
6. Warranty Inspections Coordination						
7. Air and Water Balancing						
8. Operator On-Site Training						
9. Prepare Operation Manuals						
20. Prepare Maintenance Manual						
	I. PERMITS AND S	SPECIAL	FEES			
. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals						
B. Parking Fees						
I. Curb and Gutter permits						
5. Sign Permits						
6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs						
7. Sidewalk Permits						
B. Landscape Permits						
). Street/Curb Design Charge						
Street/Curb Design Charge Building Permits						
O. Street/Curb Design Charge O. Building Permits O. Plan Check Fee						
O. Street/Curb Design Charge O. Building Permits O. Plan Check Fee O. Water Connection Fee						
O. Street/Curb Design Charge O. Building Permits 1. Plan Check Fee 2. Water Connection Fee 3. Sanitary Connection Fee						
O. Street/Curb Design Charge O. Building Permits 1. Plan Check Fee 2. Water Connection Fee 3. Sanitary Connection Fee 4. Storm connection Fee						
O. Street/Curb Design Charge O. Building Permits 1. Plan Check Fee 2. Water Connection Fee 3. Sanitary Connection Fee 4. Storm connection Fee 5. Gas Service Charge						
O. Street/Curb Design Charge O. Building Permits 1. Plan Check Fee 2. Water Connection Fee 3. Sanitary Connection Fee 4. Storm connection Fee 5. Gas Service Charge 6. Power Service Charge						
O. Street/Curb Design Charge O. Building Permits 1. Plan Check Fee 2. Water Connection Fee 3. Sanitary Connection Fee 4. Storm connection Fee 5. Gas Service Charge 6. Power Service Charge 7. Steam Service charge						
O. Street/Curb Design Charge O. Building Permits 1. Plan Check Fee 2. Water Connection Fee 3. Sanitary Connection Fee 4. Storm connection Fee 5. Gas Service Charge 6. Power Service Charge 7. Steam Service charge 8. Chiller Water Service Charge						
O. Street/Curb Design Charge O. Building Permits 1. Plan Check Fee 2. Water Connection Fee 3. Sanitary Connection Fee 4. Storm connection Fee 5. Gas Service Charge 6. Power Service Charge 7. Steam Service charge 8. Chiller Water Service Charge 9. Special Tap Fees						
O. Street/Curb Design Charge O. Building Permits 1. Plan Check Fee 2. Water Connection Fee 3. Sanitary Connection Fee 4. Storm connection Fee 5. Gas Service Charge 6. Power Service Charge 7. Steam Service charge 8. Chiller Water Service Charge 9. Special Tap Fees 20. Contractor's Licenses						
O. Street/Curb Design Charge O. Building Permits 1. Plan Check Fee 2. Water Connection Fee 3. Sanitary Connection Fee 4. Storm connection Fee 5. Gas Service Charge 6. Power Service Charge 7. Steam Service charge 8. Chiller Water Service Charge 9. Special Tap Fees 20. Contractor's Licenses 21. Royalties						
O. Street/Curb Design Charge O. Building Permits 1. Plan Check Fee 2. Water Connection Fee 3. Sanitary Connection Fee 4. Storm connection Fee 5. Gas Service Charge 6. Power Service Charge 7. Steam Service charge 8. Chiller Water Service Charge 9. Special Tap Fees 20. Contractor's Licenses 21. Royalties 22. Zoning Fees/Consultants						
O. Street/Curb Design Charge O. Building Permits 1. Plan Check Fee 2. Water Connection Fee 3. Sanitary Connection Fee 4. Storm connection Fee 5. Gas Service Charge 6. Power Service Charge 7. Steam Service charge 8. Chiller Water Service Charge 9. Special Tap Fees 20. Contractor's Licenses 21. Royalties						
O. Street/Curb Design Charge O. Building Permits 1. Plan Check Fee 2. Water Connection Fee 3. Sanitary Connection Fee 4. Storm connection Fee 5. Gas Service Charge 6. Power Service Charge 7. Steam Service charge 8. Chiller Water Service Charge 9. Special Tap Fees 20. Contractor's Licenses 21. Royalties 22. Zoning Fees/Consultants 23. Use Fees						
O. Street/Curb Design Charge O. Building Permits 1. Plan Check Fee 2. Water Connection Fee 3. Sanitary Connection Fee 4. Storm connection Fee 5. Gas Service Charge 6. Power Service Charge 7. Steam Service charge 8. Chiller Water Service Charge 9. Special Tap Fees 20. Contractor's Licenses 21. Royalties 22. Zoning Fees/Consultants 23. Use Fees 24. Construction Equipment Licenses						
D. Street/Curb Design Charge D. Building Permits 1. Plan Check Fee 2. Water Connection Fee 3. Sanitary Connection Fee 4. Storm connection Fee 5. Gas Service Charge 6. Power Service Charge 7. Steam Service charge 8. Chiller Water Service Charge 9. Special Tap Fees 20. Contractor's Licenses 21. Royalties 22. Zoning Fees/Consultants 23. Use Fees 24. Construction Equipment Licenses 25. Construction Equipment Permits						

					Inspiring	Greatness	
Fee Matrix for CM-R							
ugust 10, 2016							
Page 5 of 5							
					INDEPENDENCE	SCHOOL DISTRICT	
DESCRIPTION	INCLUDE IN FEE	INCLUDE IN GENERAL CONDITIONS	A/E	OWNER	DIRECT COST OF WORK (BID PKGS)		
V	III. INSURANCE	AND BON	DS				
. Builders Risk Insurance							
. Errors and Omissions							
. General Liability							
Completed Operations Liability							
. Excess Liability Coverage							
. Workman's Compensation (On-Site Staff)							
. FICA insurance (On-Site Staff)							
. Federal Unemployment (On-Site Staff)							
State Unemployment (On-Site Staff)							
0. Payment Bond							
Performance Bond							
2. Off-Site Staff Insurance							
3. Off-Site Staff Taxes							
	IX. OTHER	соѕтѕ					
. Project Taxes	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
. Project Taxes	IX. OTHER	соѕтѕ					
. Project Taxes . Construction Equipment . Construction and Services	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
. Construction Equipment	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
Construction Equipment Construction and Services Construction Materials	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
. Construction Equipment . Construction and Services	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
Construction Equipment Construction and Services Construction Materials Cost of Design and Engineering	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
Construction Equipment Construction and Services Construction Materials Cost of Design and Engineering A/E Cost for Bid Packages	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
Construction Equipment Construction and Services Construction Materials Cost of Design and Engineering A/E Cost for Bid Packages Certain Preliminary Soils Investigations	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
Construction Equipment Construction and Services Construction Materials Cost of Design and Engineering A/E Cost for Bid Packages Preliminary Soils Investigations Title/Development Cost	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
Construction Equipment Construction and Services Construction Materials Cost of Design and Engineering A/E Cost for Bid Packages Preliminary Soils Investigations Title/Development Cost Land Costs	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
Construction Equipment Construction and Services Construction Materials Cost of Design and Engineering A/E Cost for Bid Packages Preliminary Soils Investigations Title/Development Cost Land Costs C. Financing/Interest Cost	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
Construction Equipment Construction and Services Construction Materials Cost of Design and Engineering A/E Cost for Bid Packages Preliminary Soils Investigations Title/Development Cost Land Costs Characteristics Interim financing Costs	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
2. Construction Equipment 2. Construction and Services 3. Construction Materials 4. Cost of Design and Engineering 5. A/E Cost for Bid Packages 6. Preliminary Soils Investigations 7. Title/Development Cost 7. Land Costs 7. Financing/Interest Cost 7. Interim financing Costs 7. Owner Change contingency	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
Construction Equipment Construction and Services Construction Materials Cost of Design and Engineering A/E Cost for Bid Packages Preliminary Soils Investigations Title/Development Cost Land Costs Cost of Design and Engineering Cost of Design and En	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
Construction Equipment Construction and Services Construction Materials Cost of Design and Engineering A/E Cost for Bid Packages Preliminary Soils Investigations Cittle/Development Cost Cand Costs Cittle/Development Cost Cost Interim financing Costs Cowner Change contingency Cost Maintenance After Move-In Construction Agreement	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
2. Construction Equipment 2. Construction and Services 3. Construction Materials 4. Cost of Design and Engineering 5. A/E Cost for Bid Packages 6. Preliminary Soils Investigations 7. Title/Development Cost 7. Land Costs 7. Financing/Interest Cost 7. Interim financing Costs 7. Owner Change contingency 7. Project Operation After Move-In 7. Project Maintenance After Move-In 7. Moving Coordination	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
Construction Equipment Construction and Services Construction Materials Cost of Design and Engineering A/E Cost for Bid Packages Preliminary Soils Investigations Title/Development Cost Land Costs Cost of Design and Engineering Cost of Design and En	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
Construction Equipment Construction and Services Construction Materials Cost of Design and Engineering A/E Cost for Bid Packages Preliminary Soils Investigations Cittle/Development Cost Chand Costs	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
. Construction Equipment . Construction and Services . Construction Materials . Cost of Design and Engineering . A/E Cost for Bid Packages . Preliminary Soils Investigations . Title/Development Cost . Land Costs 0. Financing/Interest Cost 1. Interim financing Costs 2. Owner Change contingency 3. Project Operation After Move-In 4. Project Maintenance After Move-In 5. Moving Coordination 6. Moving Costs 7. Corrective Work 8. Costs of Emergency Work 9. C.M. General Overhead Cost	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
Construction Equipment Construction and Services Construction Materials Cost of Design and Engineering A/E Cost for Bid Packages Preliminary Soils Investigations Title/Development Cost Land Costs Corinancing/Interest Cost Interim financing Costs Cowner Change contingency Project Operation After Move-In Project Maintenance After Move-In Moving Costs Corrective Work Costs of Emergency Work	IX. OTHER	COSTS					
. Construction Equipment . Construction and Services . Construction Materials . Cost of Design and Engineering . A/E Cost for Bid Packages . Preliminary Soils Investigations . Title/Development Cost . Land Costs 0. Financing/Interest Cost 1. Interim financing Costs 2. Owner Change contingency 3. Project Operation After Move-In 4. Project Maintenance After Move-In 5. Moving Coordination 6. Moving Costs 7. Corrective Work 8. Costs of Emergency Work 9. C.M. General Overhead Cost 0. C.M. Profit/Margin		COSTS					

APPENDIX C

APPENDIX B

FIRM INFORMATION SHEET

Name of Respondent	
Primary Contact	
Title	
E-mail	
Telephone	
Number of Employees	
Ownership Structure / Form of Business	
Ownership Structure	
Address	



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT-RISK RFP#

2020-PUR-008

NOTICE

The School District of the City of Independence. District 30 ("District") will accept qualifications for a construction manager at-risk in accordance with RSMo § 67.5050 and as described in the attached request. Qualified organizations ("Respondent") are invited to submit five (5) copies of a formal proposal as described in the attached RFP.

PROPOSAL SHALL BE LABELED

"QUALIFICATIONS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT-RISK"

AND ADDRESSED TO:

Facilities Att: Salum Stutzer 201 N. Forest Avenue Independence, MO 64050

PROPOSALS MUST BE RECEIVED BY:

November 30, 2020 at 12:00 PM

Questions/Requests for Information may be directed to:
Salum Stutzer
(816)521-5330
salum_stutzer@isdschools.org

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Certification Form

Part I: Introduction and Process

- 1) Purpose
- 2) Information About the District
- 3) Scope of Services
- 4) Timeline for Process
- 5) Selection Criteria
- 6) Review Process

Part II: Instructions to Respondents

- 1) Submitting a Response
- 2) Rights of District
- 3) Proposal Requirements
- 4) Terms and Conditions
- 5) Contract Negotiations

Part III: General Conditions-Responses and Subsequent Contracts

- 1) Scope
- 2) Definitions as Used Herein
- 3) Completing Proposal
- 4) Request for Information
- 5) Confidentiality of Qualification Information
- 6) Proposals
- 7) Negotiation
- 8) Termination
- 9) Tax Exemption
- 10) Safety
- 11) Rights Reserved
- 12) Respondent Prohibited
- 13) Disclaimer of Liability
- 14) Hold Harmless
- 15) Law Governing
- 16) Anti-Discrimination Clause
- 17) Conflict of Interest
- 18) Insurance
- 19) Costs

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT-

RISK

RFP No. 2020-PUR-008

CERTIFICATION FORM

The School District of the City of Independence District No. 30 ("District") will accept proposals for construction manager at-risk in accordance with RSMo § 67.5050 and as described in the attached request. Qualified organizations (Respondent) are invited to submit five (5) copies of a formal proposal as described herein.

PROPOSAL SHALL BE LABELED

"PROPOSAL – CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT-RISK"

AND ADDRESSED TO

Facilities

Att: Salum Stutzer

201 N. Forest Avenue
Independence, MO 64050

PROPOSALS MUST BE RECEIVED BY:

November 30, 2020 at 12:00 PM

The District reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive technical defects, and to select the proposal deemed most advantageous to the District.

The undersigned certifies that he/she has the authority to bind the company in an agreement to supply the service in accordance with all terms and conditions specified herein. Please type or print the information below. Respondent is required to complete, sign and return this form with the proposal.

Company Name	Authorized Person (Print)
Address	Signature
City/State/Zip	Title
Telephone # Fax #	Date Tax ID #
E-mail	Entity Type

Page 28 of 39

PART I: INTRODUCTION AND PROCESS

1. PURPOSE

The District is requesting proposals from selected firms to provide a full range of services as Construction Manager at Risk (CM-R) during the planning, design, renovation and construction of school facilities. The District will retain a design firm(s) to provide all architecturally related services, and the CM-R will be required to work with the District and design firm(s) during the planning phase, construction document preparation and the construction process.

This Request for Proposals (RFP) is the second in a two-step competitive process by which the District will engage a CM-R firm to provide construction management. After submission of responses, the District will interview at least two firms, with those interviews to occur on September 2, 2016, between 8:00 a.m. and 12:00 p.m. Time slots will be assigned by random draw. An interview outline is attached as Appendix B.

2. <u>INFORMATION ABOUT THE DISTRICT</u>

Organization	Grade Level Range	
Schools	(2) Early Childhood Centers(20) Elementary Schools(4) Middle Schools(3) High Schools	3&4 Year Old PreK-5 6-8 9-12

For more information about the District, visit our website www.isdschools.org

3. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The selected firm shall provide Construction Manager At Risk services related to the following:

Construction management services for projects with an anticipated cost of over \$3 Million.

4. TIMELINE FOR PROCESS

The timeline listed below is the District's estimation of time required to complete the process. All efforts shall be made to abide by this schedule; however, it is subject to change if necessary:

Notification of Firms Asked to Submit RFP	November 25, 2020
RFP Due	November 30, 2020
Parties That Submitted RFPs Publicly Opened	November 30, 2020
and Read Aloud	
I. 4	D 1 2020

Interviews Conducted December 1, 2020 Apparent Successful Offeror December 2, 2020

Notification

Communications with Board members and/or other District staff in an effort to influence the outcome of the RFP selection process is prohibited and will result in rejection of the proposal.

5. <u>SELECTION CRITERIA</u>

Respondent's proposals will be evaluated on the following criteria, based upon which firm best meets the needs of the District:

- Experience on +/- \$40,000,000 public school bond programs
- Current projects under construction (quality of references)
- Current projects under construction (budget adherence)
- Proportion of current gross revenues for the last three years as CM-R
- Overall bonding capacity and had there been any claims on your surety
- Quality of preconstruction services, frequency of estimates, timeline for the GMP Process to develop GMP to match district budget
- Describe your contingencies and how you will manage those thru completion
- Describe your tracking and reporting on payments and the GMP
- Experience of Overall Project Team
 - Project Superintendent experience
- Project Manager experience
- Pre-construction/Estimating Services experience
- Soliciting bids and local community involvement
- Describe your ability to self-perform your work
- Describe your ability to provide quality control, safety and MEP coordination
- Describe what you believe are the critical construction phase issues
- Fee matrix- Completeness and overall evaluation
- Respondent's fees for overhead and profit
- Reimbursable costs for reimbursable items.

Under no circumstances shall the District make award to any respondent who:

- 1. Guarantees, warrants or otherwise assumes financial responsibility for the work of others on the project.
- 2. Provides the District with a guaranteed maximum price for the work of others on the project.
- 3. Furnishes or guarantees a performance or payment bond for other contractors on the project.

6. REVIEW PROCESS

Following the deadline and after conducting interviews, the selection committee shall evaluate the proposals. The period of evaluation of the proposals, and all responding firms will be evaluated according to their responses to the RFQ and RFP.

PART II: INSTRUCTIONS TO RESPONDENTS

1. SUBMITTING A RESPONSE

In submitting proposals, the Respondent agrees to provide the services in accordance with the project scope. The successful Respondent will provide a Letter of Engagement for District review which enumerates the terms of the agreement.

The response shall follow the outline provided below and be concise. Failure to follow instructions may nullify the response from consideration. To be considered for selection, Respondents should clearly limit responses to the specific criteria in the order listed. No joint responses will be accepted by the District.

The deadline for submitting the response shall be in accordance with the notice. Proposals received that date and time will not be considered. Telephone, facsimile, electronic or electronic delivery of proposals will not be considered. The District is not responsible for lateness or non-delivery by the United States Postal Service or other carrier to the District. The time and date recorded by the District shall be the official time of receipt. Proposals are to be prepared at no cost to the District and will remain the District's property.

Ownership of all data, materials and documentation originated and prepared for the District pursuant to the RFP shall belong exclusively to the District and be subject to public inspection in accordance with the Missouri Sunshine Law.

2. RIGHTS OF DISTRICT

The District has the right to:

- Reject any and/or all proposals received in response to this RFP.
- Respond to inquiries for clarification purposes only and/or to request clarification, if necessary.
- Waive minor irregularities if the District determines that waiver would be in its best interest and would not result in an unfair advantage for other respondents and potential respondents.
- Select a proposal other than that with the lowest cost. The District reserves the right to incorporate terms and conditions it determines to be proper or necessary into any contract negotiated as a result of a proposal submitted in response to this RFP.

Any changes deemed necessary by the District to this RFP will submitted as an addendum to this RFP. If the District should amend any segment of the RFP after submission of the proposals and prior to announcement of the successful respondent, all respondents will be afforded ample opportunity to revise their proposals to accommodate the RFP amendment and the dates for submission of revised proposals announced at this time.

Any use or reference of this RFP by the Respondent to promote, solicit, or disseminate information regarding the services being provided is prohibited, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the District. All proposals shall be valid for a period of sixty (60) days from the opening date of the RFP.

3. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

If not previously provided in Respondent's RFQ, please provide the following information in your response:

A. Firm's Approach to Developing New Facilities, Renovations, and Additions.

Describe a project approach regarding your firm's understanding of the project, its goals, and objectives and describe your planning process.

B. Firm's Experience with Planning for the Development of such Facilities, Renovations and Additions.

Provide information about your experience on similar planning projects and your overall qualifications to carry out the project(s). Provide project descriptions and locations photographs of at least five (5) relevant projects completed by the firm.

C. Firm's Personnel Assign to the Project.

Identify the names of any personnel who will be members of the actual project team and identify their level of experience with public school construction projects.

D. Firm's References.

Provide references from five (5) recent planning projects of similar scope. Include district, contact names and telephone numbers.

E. Sub-Consultants that Your Firm will Employ.

Identify all out-of-house sub-consultants that you will use and include individual duties, responsibilities, and a resume for each professional who will work on the project. Include relevant information including Sub-Consultant firms, names, history and profiles, philosophy, specialization, experience, and reference.

F. Include Information on Firm's Basic Fee Structure / Range.

Include your proposed fee range along with an hourly rate structure for additional services. You proposal should include all Fees, Costs and Estimated expenses.

G. Additional Items to Answer:

- Describe your proposed methods to control, monitor and estimate construction costs for the project.
- Describe your proposed method to minimize construction change orders; specifically related to unforeseen conditions, design omissions, and code or jurisdictional authority reviews.
- Describe the construction oversight and commissioning procedures to be sued and the specific personnel that will perform these functions.
- Why should the Independence School District use your firm?
- Feel free to provide any additional information you would like the District to consider.

The District also requests Respondent to complete Appendix A, "Fee Matrix" and Appendix B, "Information Sheet."

4. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The contract will be awarded to the firm that submitted the best responsible proposal complying with the requirements of the RFQ and this RFP, provided the proposal is reasonable and in the best interest of the District to accept. The firm selected will be notified as the earliest practical date. The decision regarding the acceptability of the proposal shall remain entirely with the District.

5. CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS

Only after the submission of responses to requests for proposals will the District attempt to negotiate and contract for the services described in this RFP solicitation with the most qualified firms. If an agreement cannot be reached, there will be an attempt to negotiate a contract with the next most qualified firm(s). This process will continue until an agreement is reached.

PART III: GENERAL CONDITIONS-RESPONSES & SUBSEQUENT CONTRACTS

The following terms and conditions shall govern the proposal of qualifications and subsequent contracts

1. **SCOPE**:

See Part I, Paragraph 3 of the RFP.

2. <u>DEFINITIONS AS USED HEREIN:</u>

- (a) The term "request for proposal" or RFP means a solicitation of a formal and sealed qualification.
- (b) The term "respondent" or "firm" means the person or entity submitting a formal sealed qualification.
- (c) The term "District" means Independence Public School District.
- (d) The term "School Board" means the governing body of the District.
- (e) The term "Contractor" means the respondent awarded a contract under this RFP.

3. **COMPLETING PROPOSAL:**

All information must be legible. Any and all corrections and/or erasures must be initialed. Each proposal must be signed in ink by an authorized representative of the respondent and required information must be provided. The contents of the proposals submitted by the successful respondent will become part of any contract award as a result of this solicitation.

4. **REQUEST FOR INFORMATION:**

Any requests for clarification of additional information deemed necessary by any respondent to present a proper proposal shall be made in accordance with the timeline. All requests will be responded to in writing by the District in the form of an addendum addressed to all prospective respondents. Verbal responses and/or representations shall not be binding on the District.

5. <u>CONFIDENTIALITY OF QUALIFICATION INFORMATION:</u>

All proposals and supporting documents will remain confidential until a final contract has been executed. All responses become the property of Independence Public School District and will be part of the public record.

6. PROPOSALS:

Proposals are to be sealed and submitted prior to the date and time indicated on the Certification Form. At such time all proposals received will be formally opened. The opening will consist of only the name and address recording of respondents. Proposals received after the date and time indicated on the Certification Form shall not be considered. Proposals may be withdrawn or modified in writing prior to the proposal deadline. Proposals that are resubmitted or modified must be sealed and submitted prior to the proposal deadline. Each respondent may submit only one (1) response to this RFP.

7. **NEGOTIATION**:

The District reserves the right to negotiate any and all elements of this RFP. The District will attempt to negotiate and contract for services described in this solicitation with the most qualified firm(s). If an agreement cannot be reached, there will be an attempt to negotiate a contract with the next most qualified firm(s). This process will continue until an agreement is reached.

8. TERMINATION:

Subject to the provisions below, any contract derived from this RFP may be terminated by either party upon thirty (30) days advance written notice to the other party; but if any work or service hereunder is in progress, but not completed as of the date of termination, then said contract may be extended upon written approval of the District until said work or services are completed and accepted.

(a) TERMINATION FOR CONVEINENCE

In the event that the contract is terminated or cancelled upon request and for the convenience of the District, without the required thirty (30) days advance written notice, then the District shall negotiate reasonable termination costs, if applicable.

(b) TERMINATION FOR CAUSE

Termination by the District for cause, default, or negligence on the part of the contractor shall be excluded from the foregoing provision; termination costs, if any, shall not apply. The thirty (30) days advance notice requirement is waived in the event of Termination for Cause.

(c) TERMINATION DUE TO UNAVAILABILTY OF FUNDS

When funds are not appropriated or otherwise made available to support continuation of performance in a subsequent fiscal year, the contract shall be cancelled and the contractor shall be reimbursed for the reasonable value of any nonrecurring costs incurred but not amortized in the price of the supplies or services delivered under the contract.

9. TAX EXEMPTION:

The District and its Agencies are exempt from State and local sales taxes. Sites of all transactions derived from this proposal shall be deemed to have been accomplished with the State of Missouri.

10. SAFETY:

All practices, materials, supplies, and equipment shall comply with the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act, as well as any pertinent Federal, State and/or local safety or environmental codes.

11. RIGHTS RESERVED:

The District reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, to waive any minor informality or irregularity in any proposal, and to make award to the proposal deemed to be most advantageous to the District. The District reserves the right to use the services of multiple firms.

12. RESPONDENT PROHIBITED:

Respondents are prohibited from assigning, transferring, conveying, subletting, or otherwise disposing of this RFP or any resultant agreement or its rights, title, or interest therein or its power to execute such

agreement to any other person, company or corporation without the previous written approval of the District.

13. **DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY:**

The District, or any of its agencies, will not hold harmless or indemnify any respondent for any liability whatsoever.

14. <u>HOLD HARMLESS</u>:

The Contractor shall agree to protect, defend, indemnify, and hold the School Board, Independence Public School District, its officer, commissions, employees and agents free and harmless from and against any and all losses, penalties, damages, settlements, costs, charges, professional fees or other expenses or liabilities of every kind and character resulting from the error, omission or negligent act of the Contractor, its agents, employees or representatives in the performance of the Contractor's duties under any agreement resulting from award of this RFP.

15. <u>LAW GOVERNING</u>:

All contractual agreements shall be subject to, governed by, and construed according to the laws of this State of Missouri.

16. <u>ANTI-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE</u>:

No respondent of this request shall in any way, directly or indirectly, discriminate against any person because of age, race, color, handicap, sex, national origin, or religious creed. Further, by submitting a proposal, respondent agrees to exercise good faith efforts to achieve compliance with federal, state and local affirmative action requirements.

17. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:

The successful respondent shall not have conflicts of interest as to revenues derived from the results of tests or recommendations made on behalf of the firm. No salaried officer or employee of this District and no member of the School Board shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect, in the contract. A violation of this provision renders the contract void. The Contractor further covenants that in the performance of the contract no person having such interest shall be employed to work on this project.

18. <u>INSURANCE</u>:

The Contractor shall be required to maintain and carry in force, for the duration of the contract, insurance coverage of the types and minimum liability as set forth below:

(a) PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY

Professional liability insurance protection must be carried by the Contractor, for the duration of the contract, in the minimum amount of \$1,000,000 each claim/\$1,000,000 aggregate, including errors and/or omissions.

(b) COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Limits:

Each Occurrence:	\$1,000,000
Personal & Advertising Injury:	\$2,000,000
Products/Completed Operations Aggregate	\$2,000,000

General Aggregate: \$2,000,000

Policy must include the following conditions:

Contractual Liability
Independent Contractors
Additional Insured: Independence Public School District

(c) AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Policy shall protect the Contractor from claims for bodily injury and/or property damage arising out of the ownership or use of any owned, hired and/or non-owned vehicles. The limits of auto liability shall be the same as required in the Commercial General Liability section. The District shall also be named as an additional insured under the policy.

(d) WORKERS' COMPENSATION

This insurance shall protect the Contractor against all claims under applicable State Workers' Compensation Laws. The Contractor shall also be protected against claims for injury, disease or death of employees which, for any reason, may not fall within the provisions of a Workers' Compensation Law. The policy limits shall not be less than the following:

Workers' Compensation: Statutory Employer's Liability:

Bodily Injury by Accident
Bodily Injury by Disease
Bodily Injury by Disease
S500,000 Each Accident
\$500,000 Policy Limit
\$500,000 Each Employee

Before entering into contract, the successful respondent shall furnish to the District Purchasing Office a Certificate of Insurance verifying all of the foregoing coverage and identifying the District as an "additional insured" on both the general liability and automobile policies. This inclusion shall not make the District a partner or joint venture with the contract respondent in its operations hereunder.

Prior to any material change or cancellation, the District will be given thirty (30) days advance notice by registered mail to the stated address of the certificate holder. Further, the District will be immediately notified of any reduction or possible reduction in aggregate limits of any such policy where such reduction, when added to any previous reductions, would exceed ten percent (10%) of the aggregate.

In the event of an occurrence, it is further agreed that any insurance maintained by the District, shall apply in excess of and not contribute with insurance provided by policies named in this contract.

The certificate holder on the Certificate of Insurance shall be as follows:

Independence School District No. 30 201 N. Forest Avenue Independence, MO 64050

19. **COSTS**

All costs incurred in the preparation of the proposal to this RFP shall be the sole responsibility of the respondent.

APPENDIX A

Fee Matrix for CM-R November 10, 2020 Page 1 of 5 OCCORDITION OCCORDITION OCCORDITION I. PRECONSTRUCTION/CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES I. Design Coordination Meetings Attendance I. Design Coordination Meetings I. Design Coordination I. Project Executives Legal Services I. Project Executives L	Independence School District					_	
November 19, 2020 Page 1 of 5 I. PRECONSTRUCTION/CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES I. Design Coordination Meetings Atlandance 2. Initial Case Opinion/Convert Entireties 3. Participate in MEP PS Standardon 4. Constructability Analysis Through Completion 5. Criss Analysis Convert Through Completion 6. Criss Analysis Convert Through Completion 7. CD Decement Review 8. Subcontrast Biology Buyut Process 9. MDE-WITE Protection Program Management 10. Substantian Abuse Protey Management 11. Project Executive 12. Field Engineer/Project Management 12. Field Engineer/Project Management 13. Project Executive 14. Project Executive 15. Project Executive 16. Project Executive 17. Schooling/Phasing/Excitation 17. Schooling/Phasing/Excitation 18. Programment 19. Project Executive 19. Project Execu						Inspiring	Greatness
DESCRIPTION OCCUPIENT EL DISCUSSION AL COVINER SERVICES I. PRECONSTRUCTION/CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES I. Design Coordination Meetings Attendance 2. Initial Cost Opinion/Control Festivate 3. Parliappale in MEP-FP Selection 4. Constructability Analysis Through Completion 5. Osci Analysis Control Through Completion 6. Soci Analysis Control Through Completion 7. De Document Roth Profession Program Management 7. De Document Roth Profession Program Management 7. De Document Rothing Policy Management 7. Profession Program Management 7. Profession Profes							
Design Coordination Meetings Attendance I. Design Coordination Me						-	
I. PRECONSTRUCTION/CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES I. Design Coordination Meetings Attendance 2. Institut Cost Opinion/Control Estimate 3. Participate in MEP-FP Selection 4. Constructability Analysis Through Completion 5. Cost Analysis Control Reviews 7. CD Document Reviews 8. Subcontrol Reviews 9. Subcontrol Reviews 9. Subcontrol Reviews 10. Subclasmos Abuse Policy Management 10. Subclasmos Abuse Policy Management 11. Project Superintendent 12. Project Executives Logal Services 13. Cost Project Executives Logal Services 14. Accounting/Purchasing 15. Project Executives Logal Services 16. Accounting/Purchasing 17. Project Executives Logal Services 18. Energy Management 19. Project Executives Logal Services 19. Project Executives 19. Services Logal Services 19. Se	1 dgc 1 01 3						
I. PRECONSTRUCTION/CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES I. Design Coordination Meetings Attendance I. Design Coordination Reviews II. Project Superintendent III. Project Superintendent I			INCLUDE IN				SCHOOL DISTRICT
1. Design Coordination Meetings Attendance 2. Initial Cost Opinion/Control Estimate 3. Participate in MEP-FP Selection 4. Constructability Analysis Through Completion 5. Osca Analysis Control Through Completion 6. MEP-FP Design Coordination Reviews 7. CO Document Review 8. Subcondral Biologia Word Process 9. Miscovers Biologia Wo	DESCRIPTION	INCLUDE IN FEE	GENERAL	A/E	OWNER	OF WORK (BID	
2. Initial Cost Opinion/Control Estimate 3. Participate in MEP-PP Selection 4. Participate in MEP-PP Design Coordinators Reviews 5. Cost Analysis/Control Triough Completion 5. Cost Analysis/Control Triough Completion 6. MEP-PP Design Coordinators Reviews 7. CO Document Review 9. Reviews 9. Review	I. PRECONSTRUCTION/CO	NSTRUCT	TION MAN	IAGEME	NT SERV	ICES	
2. Initial Cost Opinion/Control Estimate 3. Participate in MEP-PP Selection 4. Participate in MEP-PP Design Coordinators Reviews 5. Cost Analysis/Control Triough Completion 5. Cost Analysis/Control Triough Completion 6. MEP-PP Design Coordinators Reviews 7. CO Document Review 9. Reviews 9. Review							
3. Participate in MEP-FP Selection 4. Constructability Analysis Through Completion 5. MEP-FP Design Coordination Reviews 7. CD Document Review 8. Subcontral BidingBuyour Process 9. Subcontral BidingBuyour Process 9. MEE-MSE Participation Program Management 10. Substance Abuse Policy Management 11. Project Superintendent 12. Field Engineer/Project Manager 13. Corporate Executives Logal Services 14. Principal in Charge 15. Project Secutives Logal Services 16. AccountingPurchasing 17. SchedulingPhasingExpiditor/Life Cycle Analysis 18. Energy Management 19. Production Engineering 20. Value engineering 21. Systems Development 22. Estimating 22. Sost Engineers 23. Cost Engineers 24. Project Coordinator 25. Project Expeditor 26. Drafting Detailler 27. Drawing Checker 28. Safety Officer 29. E.E.O. Officer 30. Socretarial 31. Clerk-hysist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Socretarial 34. Project Engineers 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Scheduling Engineer 37. Springer Checker 38. Selective Coordinator 39. Project Engineer 39. Socretarial 31. Clerk-hysist 30. Mechanical Coordinator 31. Project Engineer 31. Stefey Engineer 32. Safety Engineer 33. Superintendent's Transportation 34. Project Staff Maving Expense							
4. Constructibility Analysis Through Completion 5. Cost Analysis Control Through Completion 8. Bubcrotrit Bidding-Binyou Process 9. Subcrotrit Bidding-Bi	2. Initial Cost Opinion/Control Estimate						
5. Cost Analysis/Control Through Completion 6. MEP-P Design Coordination Reviews 8. Subcontrat Bidding/Buyout Process 9. MBE/WRE Participation Program Management 10. Substance Abuse Policy Management 11. Project Superintendent 12. Field Engineer/Project Manager 13. Corporate Executives Alegal Services 14. Principal in Charge 15. Project Executive 16. Accounting/Purchasing 17. Schodding/Phasing/Expiditor/Life Cycle Analysis 18. Energy Management 19. Production Engineering 20. Value engineering 21. Systems Development 22. Estimating 23. Cost Engineers 24. Project Coordinator 25. Project Expeditor 26. Project Expeditor 27. Drawing Detailer 27. Drawing Detailer 28. Safety Officer 39. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Universe Engineer 37. Safety Engineer 38. Time Kep	3. Participate in MEP-FP Selection						
6. MEP-FP Design Coordination Reviews 7. CD Document Review 8. Subcontral Review 9. Subcontral Review Subpart Management 9. Subcontral Review Subpart Review Subcontral Rev	Constructability Analysis Through Completion						
7. CD Document Review 8. Subcontrat Bidding/Buyout Process 9. Subcontrat Bidding/Buyout Process 9. MBE/MSE Protizedation Program Management 10. Substance Abuse Policy Management 11. Project Superintendent 11. Project Superintendent 12. Field Engineer/Project Manager 13. Corporate Executives/Logal Services 14. Principal in Charge 15. Project Executive 16. Accounting/Pushasing/Expiditor/Life Cycle Analysis 17. Scheduling/Phasing/Expiditor/Life Cycle Analysis 18. Energy Management 19. Production Engineering 20. Value engineering 21. Systems Development 22. Estimating 23. Cost Engineers 24. Project Coordinator 25. Project Expiditor 26. Project Expiditor 27. Drawing Checker 28. Safety Officer 30. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 32. Secretarial 33. Coertery State Staff Transportation 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Since Engineer 37. Safety Defineer 38. Scheduling Engineer 39. Sincertential 31. Clerk-typist 32. Secretarial 33. Superintendent's Transportation 34. Project Engineer	5. Cost Analysis/Control Through Completion						
8. Subcontrat Bidding/Buyout Process 9. MBE/WBE Participation Program Management 10. Substance Abuse Policy Management 11. Project Superintendent 12. Field Engineer/Project Manager 13. Corporate Executives(Legal Services 14. Principat In Charge 15. Project Executive 16. Accounting/Purchasing 17. Scheduling/Phasing/Expiditor/Life Cycle Analysis 18. Energy Management 19. Production Engineering 20. Value engineering 21. Systems Development 22. Estimating 23. Cost Engineers 24. Project Coordinator 25. Project Expeditor 26. Project Expeditor 27. Drawing Checker 28. Safety Officer 29. E.E.O. Officer 30. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Eleminal Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Chacker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Scheduling Engineer 38. Superintended Coordinator 39. Project Engineer 39. Froject Engineer 39. Scheduling Engineer 30. Time Keeper/Chacker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintended Transportation 40. On-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Staff Transportation 42. Engineers Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	6. MEP-FP Design Coordination Reviews						
9. MBE/WBE Participation Program Management 10. Substance Abuse Policy Management 11. Project Superintendent 12. Field Engineer/Project Manager 13. Corporate Executives/Logal Services 14. Principal in Charge 16. Accounting/Purchasing 17. Scheduling/Phasing/Expiditor/Life Cycle Analysis 18. Energy Management 19. Production Engineering 20. Value engineering 21. Systems Development 22. Estimating 22. Estimating 23. Cost Engineers 24. Project Expeditor 25. Project Expeditor 26. Drahing Detailer 27. Drawing Ottecker 28. Safety Officer 29. Safety Officer 29. Safety Officer 29. Early Officer 20. Confidence 20. Service Service 20. Service Service 21. Systems Development 22. Systems Development 23. Systems Development 24. Project Expeditor 25. Project Expeditor 26. Drahing Detailer 27. Drawing Ottecker 28. Safety Officer 29. Safety Officer 30. Secretarial 31. Cierk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Secretarial 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Scheduling Engineer 37. Safety Engineer 38. Systems Rosper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	7. CD Document Review						
10. Substance Abuse Policy Management	8. Subcontrat Bidding/Buyout Process						
11. Project Superintendent 12. Field Engineer/Project Manager 12. Field Engineer/Project Manager 1 13. Corporate Executives/Legal Services 1 14. Project Executive 1 16. Accounting/Purchasing 1 17. Scheduling/Phasing/Expiditor/Life Cycle Analysis 1 18. Energy Management 1 19. Production Engineering 1 20. Value engineering 1 21. Systems Development 1 22. Estimating 1 23. Cost Engineers 1 24. Project Coordinator 1 25. Project Expeditor 1 26. Drafting Detailer 2 27. Drawing Checker 2 28. Safety Officer 9 29. E.E.O. Officer 9 30. Secretarial 1 31. Clerk-typist 2 32. Mechanical Coordinator 3 33. Electrical Coordinator 3 34. Project Engineer 9 35. Scheduling Engineer 9 36. Time Keeper/Checker 9 37. Safety Engineer 9 38. Superintendent's T	9. MBE/WBE Participation Program Management						
12. Field Engineer/Project Manager 13. Corporate Executives/Logal Services 14. Principal in Charge 15. Project Executive 16. Accounting/Purchasing 17. Scheduling/Phasing/Expiditor/Life Cycle Analysis 18. Energy Management 19. Production Engineering 20. Value engineering 21. Systems Development 22. Estimating 23. Cost Engineers 24. Project Coordinator 25. Project Expeditor 26. Drafting Detailer 27. Drawing Obecker 28. Safety Officer 29. E.E.O. Officer 30. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 32. Most Engineer 33. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 32. Most Engineer 33. Secretarial 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Expeditation Gueral Fransportation 44. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 45. Project Staff Moving Expense	10. Substance Abuse Policy Management						
13. Corporate Executives/Legal Services 14. Principal in Charge 15. Project Executive 16. Accounting/Purchasing 17. Scheduling/Phasing/Expiditor/Life Cycle Analysis 18. Energy Management 19. Production Engineering 20. Value engineering 21. Systems Development 22. Estimating 23. Cost Engineers 24. Project Coordinator 25. Project Expeditor 26. Drafting Detailer 27. Drawing Checker 28. Safety Officer 29. E.E.O. Officer 30. Secretarial 31. Cleft-Vpist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	11. Project Superintendent						
14. Principal in Charge 15. Project Executive 16. Accounting/Purchasing 16. Accounting/Purchasing 17. Scheduling/Phasing/Expiditor/Life Cycle Analysis 17. Scheduling/Phasing/Expiditor/Life Cycle Analysis 18. Energy Management 19. Production Engineering 20. Value engineering 19. Production Engineering 21. Systems Development 19. Experiment Systems Development 22. Estimating 20. Good Engineers 24. Project Coordinator 20. Experiment Systems 25. Project Expeditor 10. Experiment Systems 26. Drafting Detailer 10. Drafting Detailer 27. Drawing Chacker 10. Experiment Systems 28. Safety Officer 10. Scretarial 30. Secretarial 10. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 10. Experiment Systems 33. Electrical Coordinator 10. Experiment Systems 34. Project Engineer 10. Safety Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 10. Experiment Systems 36. Time Keeper/Checker 10. Experiment Systems 37. Safety Engineer 10. Experiment Systems 38. Superintendent's Transportation 10. Off-Site Staff Transportation 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation <	12. Field Engineer/Project Manager						
15. Project Executive 16. Accounting/Purchasing 16. Accounting/Purchasing	13. Corporate Executives/Legal Services						
16. Accounting/Purchasing 17. Scheduling/Phasing/Expiditor/Life Cycle Analysis 18. Energy Management 19. Production Engineering 20. Value engineering 21. Systems Development 22. Estimating 23. Cost Engineers 24. Project Coordinator 25. Project Expeditor 26. Drafting Detailer 27. Drawing Checker 28. Safety Officer 29. E.E.O. Officer 30. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Sime Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	14. Principal in Charge						
17. Scheduling/Phasing/Expiditor/Life Cycle Analysis 18. Energy Management 19. Production Engineering 20. Value engineering 21. Systems Development 22. Estimating 23. Cost Engineers 24. Project Coordinator 25. Project Expeditor 26. Drafting Detailer 27. Drawing Checker 28. Safety Officer 29. E.E.O. Officer 30. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	15. Project Executive						
18. Energy Management 19. Production Engineering 20. Value engineering	16. Accounting/Purchasing						
19. Production Engineering 20. Value engineering 21. Systems Development 22. Estimating 23. Cost Engineers 24. Project Coordinator 25. Project Expeditor 26. Drafting Detailer 27. Drawing Checker 28. Safety Officer 29. E.E.O. Officer 30. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Transportation 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 41. On-Site Project Staff Moving Expense	17. Scheduling/Phasing/Expiditor/Life Cycle Analysis						
20. Value engineering 21. Systems Development 22. Estimating 23. Cost Engineers 24. Project Coordinator 25. Project Expeditor 26. Drafting Detailer 27. Drawing Checker 28. Safety Officer 29. E.E.O. Officer 30. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Strime Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	18. Energy Management						
21. Systems Development 22. Estimating 23. Cost Engineers 23. Cost Engineers 24. Project Coordinator 25. Project Expeditor 25. Project Expeditor 27. Drawing Checker 28. Safety Officer 28. Safety Officer 29. E.E.O. Officer 30. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 31. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	19. Production Engineering						
22. Estimating 23. Cost Engineers 24. Project Coordinator 25. Project Expeditor 25. Project Expeditor 26. Drafting Detailer 27. Drawing Checker 27. Drawing Checker 28. Safety Officer 29. E.E.O. Officer 30. Secretarial 30. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 31. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 33. Florect Engineer 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 9. Off-Site Staff Transportation 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense 9. One Site Project Staff Moving Expense	20. Value engineering						
23. Cost Engineers 24. Project Coordinator 25. Project Expeditor 26. Drafting Detailer 27. Drawing Checker 28. Safety Officer 29. E.E.O. Officer 30. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 40. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	21. Systems Development						
24. Project Expeditor 25. Project Expeditor 26. Drafting Detailer 27. Drawing Checker 28. Safety Officer 29. E.E.O. Officer 30. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 40. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	22.Estimating						
25. Project Expeditor 26. Drafting Detailer 27. Drawing Checker 27. Drawing Checker 28. Safety Officer 28. Safety Officer 30. Secretarial 30. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 31. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	23. Cost Engineers						
26. Drafting Detailer 27. Drawing Checker 28. Safety Officer 29. E.E.O. Officer 30. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	24. Project Coordinator						
27. Drawing Checker 28. Safety Officer 28. Safety Officer 9. E.E.O. Officer 30. Secretarial 9. E.E.O. Officer 31. Clerk-typist 9. E.E.O. Officer 32. Mechanical Coordinator 9. E.E.O. Officer 33. Electrical Coordinator 9. E.E.O. Officer 34. Project Engineer 9. E.E.O. Officer 35. Scheduling Engineer 9. E.E.O. Officer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 9. E.E.O. Officer 37. Safety Engineer 9. E.E.O. Officer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 9. Officite Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 9. Officite Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 9. Officite Staff Moving Expense	25. Project Expeditor						
27. Drawing Checker 28. Safety Officer 28. Safety Officer 9. E.E.O. Officer 30. Secretarial 9. E.E.O. Officer 31. Clerk-typist 9. E.E.O. Officer 32. Mechanical Coordinator 9. E.E.O. Officer 33. Electrical Coordinator 9. E.E.O. Officer 34. Project Engineer 9. E.E.O. Officer 35. Scheduling Engineer 9. E.E.O. Officer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 9. E.E.O. Officer 37. Safety Engineer 9. E.E.O. Officer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 9. Officite Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 9. Officite Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 9. Officite Staff Moving Expense	26. Drafting Detailer						
28. Safety Officer 29. E.E.O. Officer 30. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	27. Drawing Checker						
29. E.E.O. Officer 30. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	28. Safety Officer						
30. Secretarial 31. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	29. E.E.O. Officer						
31. Clerk-typist 32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	30. Secretarial						
32. Mechanical Coordinator 33. Electrical Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	31. Clerk-typist						
33. Electrical Coordinator 34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	32. Mechanical Coordinator						
34. Project Engineer 35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense	33. Electrical Coordinator						
35. Scheduling Engineer 36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense							
36. Time Keeper/Checker 37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense							
37. Safety Engineer 38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense							
38. Superintendent's Transportation 39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense							
39. Off-Site Staff Travel Cost 40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense							
40. Off-Site Staff Transportation 41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense							
41. On-Site Project Manager Transportation 42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense							
42. Engineer's Transportation 43. Project Staff Moving Expense							
43. Project Staff Moving Expense							
44 Project Statt Subsistance Cost	44. Project Staff Subsistance Cost						
(NOTE: PERSONNEL COSTS INCLUDE SALARIES & FRINGE BENEFITS)		JEEITS)				1	

Independence School District					Tuence	Greatness	
Fee Matrix for CM-R					Inspirin	greatness	
November 10, 2020					_(
Page 2 of 5							
						SCHOOL DISTRICT	
	INCLUDE IN FEE	INCLUDE IN GENERAL	A/E	OWNER	DIRECT COST OF WORK (BID		
		CONDITIONS			PKGS)		
U OAFETY () FOUDITY	AND OF	D)//OF0				
II. SAFETY, S	SECURITY	, AND SE	RVICES				
Safety Equipment							
2. First Aid Supplies							
3. Handrails and toe Boards							
4. Opening Protection							
5. Fire Extinguishers/Fire Watch							
6. Security Guard/Watchman Service							
7. Routine Cleanup							
8. Final Cleanup							
9. Temporary Fencing							
10. Covered Walkways							
11. Barricades							
12. Safety Nets							
13. Ambulance Costs							
14. Debris Hauling/Removal							
15. Traffic Control							
16. Roadway Maintenance							
17. Dust Controls							
18. 2-Way Radio Equipment							
19. Trash Chute and Hoppers							
20. Snow and Ice Removal							
III. FACILITIES,	EQUIPME	ENT, AND	UTILITIE	S			
Office and Trailer Rentals							
2. Waterboy-Ice-Cups							
3. Temporary Wiring/Lighting							
4. Power Expense							
5. Temporary Water Service							
6. Heating Expense							
7. Cooling Expense							
8. Temporary Toilets/Sewer Services							
9. Change/Shower Rooms							
10. Lunch Rooms							
11. Temporary Stairs							
12. Temporary Enclosures/Partitions							
13. Project Signs/Bulletin Boards							
14. Telephone Expenses							
15. Temporary Roads							
16. Trucks							
17. Air Compressors							
18. Dewatering Equipment							
19. Generators							
20. Miscellaneous Equipment							
21. Fuel, Repairs, and Maintenance							
(NOTE: PERSONNEL COSTS INCLUDE SALARIES & FRINGE BEN	IEFITS)						
							· ———

Independence School District					Tucheren	Greatness
Fee Matrix for CM-R					Juspiting	greatness
November 10, 2020					_(
Page 3 of 5						
						SCHOOL DISTRICT
	INCLUDE IN FEE	INCLUDE IN GENERAL	A/E	OWNER	OF WORK (BID	
		CONDITIONS			PKGS)	
IV. VER	TICAL HO	DISTING				
	ı					
Hoist (Tower Crane) Small Material Hoist Rental						
3. Hoist Landings and Fronts						
4. Hoist Operators						
5. Hoist Material Skips						
6. Hoist Material Hoppers 7. Front and diamontic Hoists						
7. Erect and dismantle Hoists					1	
8. Fuel, Repairs, Maintenance for Hoists					-	
9. Hoist Communication						
10. Crane Rental					1	
11. Crane Operators						
12. Erect and dismantle Crane					1	
13. Fuel, Repairs, Maintenance for Crane					1	
14. Crane Raising/Jumping Cost					1	
15. Temporary Elevator Rental						
16. Elevator Operation Cost						
17. Elevator Repairs and Maintenance					1	
18. Cage Rider at Elevator						
19. Forklift Rental						
20. Forklift Operators						
21. Fuel, Repairs, Maintenance for Forklifts						
22. Elevator Service Costs 23. Safety Inspections for Hoisting Equipment						
23. Safety inspections for Floisting Equipment						
V. REPRODU	CTION AN	ND PRINT	ING			
Cost Study Documents						
2. Systems Study Documents						
3. Bid Package Documents						
4. Bidding Instructions						
5. Construction Documents Printing						
6. Postage and Express Costs						
7. As-Built Documentation						
8. As-Built Documents (Printing/Drafting)						
9. Accounting Forms						
10. Field Reporting Forms						
11. Contract Agreement Forms						
12. Schedule Report Forms						
13. Estimating Forms						
14. Cost Reporting Forms 15. Procentation Charts and Graphics						
15. Presentation Charts and Graphics						
16. Value Analysis Studies						
17. Data Processing (In-House)						
18. Reference Materials						
19. Duplication Expense (Miscellaneous)						
20. Shop Drawing Printing					1	
21. Maintenance Manuals						
22. Operation Manuals						
23. Special Forms						
(NOTE: PERSONNEL COSTS INCLUDE SALARIES & FRINGE BEN	EFITS)				<u>L</u>	
CONTROL OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PER PER PER PER PER PER PER PER PER PE						
						

					Tueneren	Greatness
ee Matrix for CM-R					Juspiling	greatness
lovember 10, 2020						
Page 4 of 5						
					INDEPENDENCE	SCHOOL DISTRIC
	INCLUDE IN FEE	INCLUDE IN GENERAL	A/E	OWNER	DIRECT COST OF WORK (BID	
		CONDITIONS			PKGS)	
,	VI. QUALITY C		2			
	VI. QUALITI C	ONTROL	,			
. Chief inspector						
2. Field Inspector						
3. Inspector's Office						
1. Inspector's Transportation						
5. Inspector's Equipment						
S. Special Inspection Consultants						
7. Special Testing Consultants						
3. Concrete Testing						
O. Masonry Testing						
10. Compaction Testing						
I1. Welding Testing						
12. Soils Investigations				1		
12. Special Testing Services						
14. Supplies and Materials (Field Office)						
15. Project Photographs						
16. Warranty Inspections Coordination17. Air and Water Balancing						
18. Operator On-Site Training						
19. Prepare Operation Manuals						
20. Prepare Maintenance Manual						
	•	•		-		
\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \						
	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
I. Storage Yard Rentals	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
Storage Yard Rentals Parking Lot Rentals	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
Storage Yard Rentals Parking Lot Rentals Parking Fees	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
I. Storage Yard Rentals Parking Lot Rentals Rentals Curb and Gutter permits	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
1. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
I. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
I. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
1. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
I. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
I. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
I. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge 10. Building Permits 11. Plan Check Fee	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
I. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge 10. Building Permits 11. Plan Check Fee 12. Water Connection Fee	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
I. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge 10. Building Permits 11. Plan Check Fee	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
I. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge 10. Building Permits 11. Plan Check Fee 12. Water Connection Fee	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
I. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge 10. Building Permits 11. Plan Check Fee 12. Water Connection Fee 14. Storm connection Fee 15. Gas Service Charge	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
I. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge 10. Building Permits 11. Plan Check Fee 12. Water Connection Fee 13. Sanitary Connection Fee 14. Storm connection Fee 15. Gas Service Charge	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
1. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge 10. Building Permits 11. Plan Check Fee 12. Water Connection Fee 13. Sanitary Connection Fee 14. Storm connection Fee 15. Gas Service Charge 16. Power Service Charge 17. Steam Service charge	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge 9. Building Permits 1. Plan Check Fee 2. Water Connection Fee 3. Sanitary Connection Fee 4. Storm connection Fee 5. Gas Service Charge 6. Power Service Charge 7. Steam Service charge 8. Chiller Water Service Charge	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
1. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge 10. Building Permits 11. Plan Check Fee 12. Water Connection Fee 13. Sanitary Connection Fee 14. Storm connection Fee 15. Gas Service Charge 16. Power Service Charge 17. Steam Service Charge 18. Chiller Water Service Charge 19. Special Tap Fees	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
1. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge 10. Building Permits 11. Plan Check Fee 12. Water Connection Fee 13. Sanitary Connection Fee 14. Storm connection Fee 15. Gas Service Charge 16. Power Service Charge 17. Steam Service charge 18. Chiller Water Service Charge 19. Special Tap Fees 10. Contractor's Licenses	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
1. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge 10. Building Permits 11. Plan Check Fee 12. Water Connection Fee 13. Sanitary Connection Fee 14. Storm connection Fee 15. Gas Service Charge 16. Power Service Charge 17. Steam Service charge 18. Chiller Water Service Charge 19. Special Tap Fees 20. Contractor's Licenses 21. Royalties	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
1. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge 10. Building Permits 11. Plan Check Fee 12. Water Connection Fee 13. Sanitary Connection Fee 14. Storm connection Fee 15. Gas Service Charge 16. Power Service Charge 17. Steam Service charge 18. Chiller Water Service Charge 19. Special Tap Fees 20. Contractor's Licenses 21. Royalties 22. Zoning Fees/Consultants	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
1. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge 10. Building Permits 11. Plan Check Fee 12. Water Connection Fee 13. Sanitary Connection Fee 14. Storm connection Fee 15. Gas Service Charge 16. Power Service Charge 17. Steam Service charge 18. Chiller Water Service Charge 19. Special Tap Fees 20. Contractor's Licenses 21. Royalties 22. Zoning Fees/Consultants 23. Use Fees	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
I. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge 10. Building Permits 11. Plan Check Fee 12. Water Connection Fee 14. Storm connection Fee	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
1. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge 10. Building Permits 11. Plan Check Fee 12. Water Connection Fee 13. Sanitary Connection Fee 14. Storm connection Fee 15. Gas Service Charge 16. Power Service Charge 17. Steam Service charge 18. Chiller Water Service Charge 19. Special Tap Fees 20. Contractor's Licenses 21. Royalties 22. Zoning Fees/Consultants 23. Use Fees 24. Construction Equipment Licenses	PERMITS AND	SPECIAL	FEES			
. Storage Yard Rentals 2. Parking Lot Rentals 3. Parking Fees 4. Curb and Gutter permits 5. Sign Permits 6. Staking & Layout Fees and Costs 7. Sidewalk Permits 8. Landscape Permits 9. Street/Curb Design Charge 10. Building Permits 11. Plan Check Fee 12. Water Connection Fee 13. Sanitary Connection Fee 14. Storm connection Fee 15. Gas Service Charge 16. Power Service Charge 17. Steam Service Charge 18. Chiller Water Service Charge 19. Special Tap Fees 19. Contractor's Licenses 19. Royalties 19. Zoning Fees/Consultants 19. Use Fees 19. Construction Equipment Licenses 19. Construction Equipment Permits	PERMITS AND S	SPECIAL	FEES			

ndependence School District					Inspiring	Greatness	
Fee Matrix for CM-R							
lovember 10, 2020					_(_		
Page 5 of 5							
					INDEPENDENCE	SCHOOL DISTRICT	
DESCRIPTION	INCLUDE IN FEE	INCLUDE IN GENERAL CONDITIONS	A/E	OWNER	DIRECT COST OF WORK (BID PKGS)		
V	III. INSURANCE	AND BON	DS				
				T	T	l	
. Builders Risk Insurance							
2. Errors and Omissions				1			
B. General Liability Completed Operations Liability				1			
L. Completed Operations Liability				1			
5. Excess Liability Coverage S. Workman's Componention (On Site Stoff)				1			
S. Workman's Compensation (On-Site Staff)							
7. FICA insurance (On-Site Staff)							
S. Federal Unemployment (On-Site Staff)							
State Unemployment (On-Site Staff)				1			
0. Payment Bond				1			
1. Performance Bond				1			
Off-Site Staff Insurance Off-Site Staff Taxes							
	IX. OTHER	1					
I. Project Taxes							
2. Construction Equipment 3. Construction and Services							
I. Construction Materials							
5. Cost of Design and Engineering 6. A/E Cost for Bid Packages							
_							
7. Preliminary Soils Investigations				1			
3. Title/Development Cost 9. Land Costs				1			
				1			
Financing/Interest Cost Interim financing Costs				1			
Interim financing Costs Owner Change contingency	<u> </u>			1			
	<u> </u>			1			
3. Project Operation After Move-In4. Project Maintenance After Move-In							
Project Maintenance After Move-In Moving Coordination				1			
6. Moving Costs				1			
7. Corrective Work				1			
	<u> </u>			1			
Costs of Emergency Work C.M. General Overhead Cost				1			
				1			
O. C.M. Profit/Margin	<u> </u>			1			
1. Cost Over GMP				1			
				-	-	<u> </u>	
NOTE: PERSONNEL COSTS INCLUDE SALARIES & FR	INGE BENEFITS)						
NOTE: PERSONNEL COSTS INCLUDE SALARIES & FR	RINGE BENEFITS)						

APPENDIX B

INFORMATION SHEET

Name of Respondent	
Primary Contact	
Title	
E-mail	
Telephone	
Number of Employees	
Ownership Structure / Form of Business	
Ownership Structure	
Address	

INTERVIEW OUTLINE

The following are anticipated items and questions for respondent to consider:

- Again highlight your knowledge of the Independence School District & their projects
- How will your firm handle and manage multiple projects?
- Please describe the process in which bid packages will be handled, and where and how they will be advertised.
- Please describe the process for qualifying or disqualifying contractors that submit bids.
- What does your firm do to ensure a minimum number of change order requests?
- Please describe your processes and guidelines to ensure safety during construction.
- Please discuss the process to ensure budget adherence.
- Do you feel that CM-R is the right approach to these projects? Why? Why not?
- What is your firm's track record with LEED projects?
- Why does your Firm want to act as a construction manager at-risk for these projects?
- Questions & Answers